
 

 
 

 
 

AGENDA PAPERS FOR 
 

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Date: Tuesday, 14 February 2023 
 

Time:  6.30 p.m. 
 

Place:  Committee Rooms 2&3, Trafford Town Hall, Talbot Road, Stretford,  
M32 0TH 

 
 

A G E N D A   PART I Pages  

 

1.  ATTENDANCES   

 

To note attendances, including officers, and any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 
Members to give notice of any interest and the nature of that interest relating 

to any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 
 

 

3.  MINUTES   

 
To receive and, if so determined, to approve as a correct record the Minutes 

of the meeting held on 24 January 2023. 
 

To Follow 

4.  QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC   

 
A maximum of 15 minutes will be allocated to public questions submitted in 

writing to Democratic Services (democratic.services@trafford.gov.uk) by 4 
p.m. on the working day prior to the meeting. Questions must be relevant to 
items appearing on the agenda and will be submitted in the order in which 

they were received. 
 

 

5.  MUSIC SERVICE   

 
To consider a report from the Head of the Music Service. 

 
 

 

1 - 4 

mailto:democratic.services@trafford.gov.uk


Children and Young People's Scrutiny Committee - Tuesday, 14 February 2023 

   
 

 

6.  OFSTED INSPECTION OUTCOME   

 
To receive a report from the Corporate Director of Children’s Services. 

 

To Follow 

7.  IMPACT OF THE COST OF LIVING ON CHILDREN AND FAMILIES   

 

To receive a report from the Corporate Director of Children’s Services. 
 

To Follow 

8.  URGENT BUSINESS (IF ANY)   

 
Any other item or items which by reason of:- 

 
(a) Regulation 11 of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 

(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, the 
Chairman of the meeting, with the agreement of the relevant Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee Chairman, is of the opinion should be 

considered at this meeting as a matter of urgency as it relates to a key 
decision; or 

 
(b) special circumstances (to be specified) the Chairman of the meeting is of 

the opinion should be considered at this meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

 

9.  EXCLUSION RESOLUTION   

 
Motion (Which may be amended as Members think fit): 
 

 That the public be excluded from this meeting during consideration of 
the remaining items on the agenda, because of the likelihood of 
disclosure of “exempt information” which falls within one or more 

descriptive category or categories of the Local Government Act 1972, 
Schedule 12A, as amended by The Local Government (Access to 

Information) (Variation) Order 2006, and specified on the agenda item 
or report relating to each such item respectively. 

 

 

 
 
SARA TODD 

Chief Executive 
 

 
Membership of the Committee 

 
Councillors D. Western (Chair), Miss L. Blackburn (Vice-Chair), J. Bennett, R. Duncan, 
F. Hornby, S. Maitland, S. Procter, M.J. Welton, G. Whitham, A.M. Whyte, S. Zhi, 

D. Acton (ex-Officio) and M.P. Whetton (ex-Officio). 
 

Further Information 
For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact: 
 

Alexander Murray,  
Tel: 0161 912 4250 



Children and Young People's Scrutiny Committee - Tuesday, 14 February 2023 

   
 

 

Email: alexander.murray@trafford.gov.uk  

 
This agenda was issued on Monday, 6th February 2023 by the Legal and Democratic 

Services Section, Trafford Council, Trafford Town Hall; Talbot Road, Stretford, 
Manchester, M32 0TH. 
 

WEBCASTING 
  

This meeting will be filmed for live and / or subsequent broadcast on the Council’s 
YouTube channel https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCjwbIOW5x0NSe38sgFU8bKg.  
The whole of the meeting will be filmed, except where there are confidential or exempt 

items. 
 

If you make a representation to the meeting, you will be deemed to have consented to 
being filmed. By entering the body of the Committee Room, you are also consenting to 
being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for 

webcasting and/or training purposes. If you do not wish to have your image captured or 
if you have any queries regarding webcasting of meetings, please contact the 

Democratic Services Officer on the above contact number or email 
democratic.services@trafford.gov.uk  
 

Members of the public may also film or record this meeting. Any person wishing to 
photograph, film or audio-record a public meeting is requested to inform Democratic 
Services in order that necessary arrangements can be made for the meeting. Please 

contact the Democratic Services Officer 48 hours in advance of the meeting if you 
intend to do this or have any other queries. 

 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCjwbIOW5x0NSe38sgFU8bKg
mailto:democratic.services@trafford.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



TRAFFORD COUNCIL 

 
Report to:  Children and Young People’s Scrutiny Committee  
Date:    February 2023 

Report for:   Information 
Report of:   Ruth O’Keefe: Head of Service 

  
Report Title 
 

Trafford Music Service – An overview of provision  

 

Summary 
 

Trafford Music Service is part of the Local Authority and sits under the Strategy and 

Resources Directorate.  
Trafford Music Service is one of 10 Music Services which make up the Greater 

Manchester Music Education Hub.  The GM hub is the largest collaboration of Music 
Services in the country and has led the way in music service across the country over the 
last 10 years.   

Music Service delivery is underpinned by the DFE National Plan for Music Education, and 
the Music Education Grant is dependent on us meeting the outcomes specified in this 

document. Trafford Music Service is delivered  in consultation with school Head Teachers 
and Music Leads.   

 

Recommendation(s) 
 

That the contents of the report are noted. 

 

Contact person for access to background papers and further information: 
 

Name: Ruth O’keefe  Ruth.okeefe@trafford.gov.uk 07841011351 
 
 
Background 

Trafford Music Service (TMS) is based at the Claremont centre in the centre of Sale. There 

have been recent proposals to move the service however these are now on hold for a 
minimum of 5 years.  
Trafford Music Service is made up of 2 full time managers – Head of Service and Business 

team leader, 5 part time managers, 5 business support staff , 3 supervisory assistants and 
74 music teachers.  The music teachers are contracted under teachers pay and conditions 

and this helps with recruitment, retention, consistency of provision and ensuring the 
highest quality of provision for our children and young people. 
 

Streams of work 
Wider opportunities / First access projects  

These are whole class projects where a class of children all learn to play an instrument 
together, for a minimum of a term. TMS deliver these projects in 53 / 64 mainstream 
primary schools. We supply all the instruments for the projects as well as the teachers and 

Document Pack Page 1

mailto:Ruth.okeefe@trafford.gov.uk


these projects are bought in by primary schools. This year we will be engaging 
approximately 5640 children in these programmes.  

In addition, we also deliver PPA cover ( music) for 13 schools and we deliver curriculum 
support for 3 schools ( this is available to all) to upskill class teachers in music delivery.  

 
Training and development 

The Head of service is also the Music Advisor for Trafford and as such aims to meet with 
every Head Teacher of every primary school once a year to go through the changes in 
government guidance, to review the music provision in school and to offer support and 

challenge. This year TMS have delivered singing in the classroom training, led all music 
subject leader meetings for primary school music coordinators and we have just agreed 

with Ashton on Mersey that we will lead the secondary music networks also.  
 
Instrumental tuition 

TMS currently provide instrumental tuition in 45 of our 64 mainstream primary schools. 
Some of our primary schools do not have instrumental tuition and some have private 

providers. Most lessons are paid for by parents and TMS invoice parents direct.  Some 
lessons are paid for by schools to support the most vulnerable (such as Looked After 
Children or those in receipt of Pupil Premium) . We are supporting schools with putting 

mechanisms in place for identifying children who may be interested in instrumental lessons 
but do not engage due to finance, and then arranging for lessons to be funded.  
We currently deliver lessons to 853 children in Trafford in primary schools and 265 
students in secondary schools..   

 
The Claremont Centre 

This Claremont Centre is the home of Trafford Music Service.  Our business support and 

management team are based at the centre as well as the storage of thousands of 
instruments which are used for our Wider Opportunities programme; this allows us to 
operate an instrument hire scheme for children wanting to learn an instrument. We run 

instrumental lessons every weekday evening and and on a Saturday. Many children from 
across the borough engage in ensembles.  Currently 397 students engage in these. 

Youth  ensembles / orchestras nationally have seen a huge decrease in numbers since 
covid and we are in the process of rebuilding this programme. We have achieved an 
increase of 162 children since Jan 22. All students who are part of our ensembles will 

perform in our termly concert series. This is held at the Stoller Hall or the RNCM and 
provides students with the experience of performing in a professional concert hall. Our 

audience is made up of parents and for many, this is their first experience of being in a 
professional concert hall.  
 

The music centre also has instrumental and vocal lessons running every evening and 
Saturday am.  Instrumental lessons include individual 1- 1 lessons, paired and group and 
we currently have 521 students attending the Claremont Centre each week for lessons. 

This is an increase of 119 students since June2022. We are now very close to full capacity 
for the building and are looking at options to provide another teaching space to facilitate 

expansion of provision.   
 
Residentials 

We run twice yearly residentials for our ensemble members. This is to give our students 
the opportunity to bond and make lifelong musical friendships which are different to those 

they forge in schools. In 2022 we visited Grange over Sands in April and Preston in 
October.  In May 23 we are taking 100 students to France.   

 
 

Document Pack Page 2



Infant provision  

Many children in Trafford have full schedules by the time they are in year 3, with dance, 
cubs, swimming, football etc.  We want to ensure that there is space made in children’s 
lives for music and so we offer infant music sessions at Claremont Centre 3 times per 

week. Children can learn a range of instruments (suitable for Y1 and 2) and can sing in the 
infant choir from reception. We currently have 109 infants on our programme.  We have a 

very high continuation rate (98% ) into Juniors where children will then enter into our group 
/ paired / 1-1 instrumental lesson programme and join our junior ensembles.   
 
 
Quality of provision  

As well as a rigorous recruitment process, we invest time and high-quality training in our 
teachers.  This year, we also are including Neuro Diversity training, Rainbow trust, an 
insight into music therapy techniques, Equality Diversity and Inclusion, exploring cultural 

diversity in music delivery as well as wellbeing sessions. We work closely with schools to 
ensure regular feedback regarding provision.   
A snap shot of some of the other areas  

• 48 schools are signed up for Trafford singing festivals ( run by TMS- this is with the 
ambition that Trafford children have the opportunity to perform on stage in a 

professional theatre before they leave school)  
• We have appointed an early years lead, extending our management team by one 

person 
• Polar Express concert at the Stoller Hall between our Philharmonic Orchestra, St 

Antonys Catholic College, Broadheath, Primary and Park Road Primary 

• Carols on the Plaza with 5 local school choirs and our brass bands 
• Jazz Camp for girls – Jazz Will Michael Jazz Education award in 2021 , In 2022 

won the parliamentary Jazz award for Jazz in Education  
• This year we have launched our Trafford Young Musicians programme to promote 

shortage instruments – Bassoon, French Horn, Oboe, Orchestral Percussion, 

Clarinet and Double Bass.26 students engage in this programme in partnership with 
Chethams School of Music in Manchester 

• New beginners’ booklets for students starting instrumental lessons with us to help 
continuity across the service and to link to ensembles more closely. 

• Working on our EDI and remissions policy and developing a charity to run alongside 

the Music Service 
• Delivering a year 6 music transition programme 

• Working with the GM hub to deliver regional high-level ensembles made up of the 
highest level students across all 10 boroughs. 

  

 
 
 

 

 

Document Pack Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 MUSIC SERVICE

